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OVERTIME PAY At least 1½ times the regular rate of pay for all hours worked over 40 in a workweek.

Law enforcement and fire protection personnel: You may be paid overtime on the basis of 
a “work period” of between 7 and 28 consecutive days in length, rather than on a 40-hour 
workweek basis.

COMPENSATORY 
TIME

Employees may receive compensatory time off instead of cash overtime pay, at a rate of not 
less than 1½ hours for each overtime hour worked, where provided pursuant to an agreement or 
understanding that meets the requirements of the Act.

EXEMPTIONS  The Act does not apply to persons who are not subject to the civil service laws of State or local 
governments and who are: elected public officials, certain immediate advisors to such officials, 
certain individuals appointed or selected by such officials to serve in various capacities, or 
employees of legislative branches of State and local governments. Employees of legislative 
libraries do not come within this exclusion and are thus covered by the Act.

 Certain types of workers are exempt from the minimum wage and overtime pay provisions, 
including bona fide executive, administrative, and professional employees who meet regulatory 
requirements.

Any law enforcement or fire protection employee who in any workweek is employed by a public 
agency employing less than 5 employees in law enforcement or fire protection activities is 
exempt from the overtime pay provisions.

YOUTH 
EMPLOYMENT

16 years old is the minimum age for most occupations. An 18-year old minimum applies to 
hazardous occupations. Minors 14 and 15 years old may work outside school hours under 
certain conditions. For more information, visit the YouthRules! Web site at www.youthrules.dol.
gov.

ENFORCEMENT The Department has authority to recover back wages and an equal amount in liquidated 
damages in instances of minimum wage, overtime, and other violations. The Department may 
litigate and/or recommend criminal prosecution. Employers may be assessed civil money 
penalties for each willful or repeated violation of the minimum wage or overtime pay provisions 
of the law. Civil money penalties may also be assessed for violations of the FLSA’s child labor 
provisions. Heightened civil money penalties may be assessed for each child labor violation 
that results in the death or serious injury of any minor employee, and such assessments may 
be doubled when the violations are determined to be willful or repeated. The law also prohibits 
retaliating against or discharging workers who file a complaint or participate in any proceeding 
under the FLSA.

ADDITIONAL 
INFORMATION

• Some state laws provide greater employee protections; employers must comply with both.

•  Employees under 20 years of age may be paid a youth minimum wage of not less than $4.25 an 
hour during their first 90 consecutive calendar days after initial employment by an employer.

•  Employers are required to display this poster where employees can readily see it.

EMPLOYEE RIGHTS
UNDER THE FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT

The law requires employers to display this poster where employees can readily see it.

AS A CITY OF TAMPA EMPLOYEE YOUR RIGHTS ARE PROTECTED UNDER THE LAW
IF YOU HAVE THE RIGHT TO WORK

DON’T LET ANYONE TAKE IT AWAY
I   f you have the skills, experience, and legal right  
   to work, your citizenship or immigration status  
   shouldn’t get in the way.  Neither should the 
place you were born or another aspect of your 
national origin.  A part of U.S. immigration laws 
protects legally-authorized workers from discri-
mination based on their citizenship status and 
national origin.  You can read this law at  

 8 U.S.C. § 1324b. 
The Immigrant and Employee Rights Section 
(IER) may be able to help if an employer treats 
you unfairly in violation of this law.
The law that IER enforces is 8 U.S.C. § 1324b.  The 
regulations for this law are at 28 C.F.R. Part 44.

Call IER if an employer:
Does not hire you or fires you because of your 
national origin or citizenship status (this may  
violate a part of the law at  
8 U.S.C. § 1324b(a)(1)) 
Treats you unfairly while checking your right to 
work in the U.S., including while completing the 
Form I-9  or using E-Verify (this may violate the  
law at 8 U.S.C. § 1324b(a)(1) or (a)(6))    
Retaliates against you because you are speaking 
up for your right to work as protected by this law 
(the law prohibits retaliation at  
8 U.S.C. § 1324b(a)(5)) 

The law can be complicated.  Call IER to get more 
information on protections from discrimination 
based on citizenship status and national origin.

Immigrant and Employee Rights Section (IER) 
1-800-255-7688                     TTY 1-800-237-2515 
www.justice.gov/ier
IER@usdoj.gov

U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, Immigrant 
and Employee Rights Section, January 2019

This guidance document is not intended to be a final agency action, has no legally binding effect, and has no force or effect of law.  The document may be rescinded or 
modified at the Department’s discretion, in accordance with applicable laws.  The Department’s guidance documents, including this guidance, do not establish legally  
enforceable responsibilities beyond what is required by the terms of the applicable statutes, regulations, or binding judicial precedent.  For more information, see  
“Memorandum for All Components: Prohibition of Improper Guidance Documents,” from Attorney General Jefferson B. Sessions III, November 16, 2017.

The U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) enforces Federal laws that protect you from discrimination in 
employment. If you believe you’ve been discriminated against at work or in applying for a job, the EEOC may be able to help.

(Revised 10/20/22)

EMPLOYEE RIGHTS
UNDER THE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT

THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR WAGE AND HOUR DIVISION

H H
YOUR RIGHTS UNDER USERRA 

THE UNIFORMED SERVICES EMPLOYMENT 
AND REEMPLOYMENT RIGHTS ACT

USERRA protects the job rights of individuals who voluntarily or involuntarily leave employment positions to undertake 
military service or certain types of service in the National Disaster Medical System.  USERRA also prohibits employers from 

discriminating against past and present members of the uniformed services, and applicants to the uniformed services.

REEMPLOYMENT RIGHTS
You have the right to be reemployed in your civilian job if you leave that 
job to perform service in the uniformed service and:

✩✩ you ensure that your employer receives advance written or verbal
notice of your service;

✩✩ you have five years or less of cumulative service in the uniformed
services while with that particular employer;

✩✩ you return to work or apply for reemployment in a timely manner
after conclusion of service; and

✩✩ you have not been separated from service with a disqualifying
discharge or under other than honorable conditions.

If you are eligible to be reemployed, you must be restored to the job 
and benefits you would have attained if you had not been absent due to 
military service or, in some cases, a comparable job.

RIGHT TO BE FREE FROM DISCRIMINATION AND RETALIATION
If you:

✩✩ are a past or present member of the uniformed service;
✩✩ have applied for membership in the uniformed service; or
✩✩ are obligated to serve in the uniformed service;

then an employer may not deny you:

✩✩ initial employment;
✩✩ reemployment;
✩✩ retention in employment;
✩✩ promotion; or
✩✩ any benefit of employment

because of this status.

In addition, an employer may not retaliate against anyone assisting in 
the enforcement of USERRA rights, including testifying or making a 
statement in connection with a proceeding under USERRA, even if that 
person has no service connection. 

HEALTH INSURANCE PROTECTION
✩✩ If you leave your job to perform military service, you have the right

to elect to continue your existing employer-based health plan
coverage for you and your dependents for up to 24 months while in
the military.

✩✩ Even if you don’t elect to continue coverage during your military
service, you have the right to be reinstated in your employer’s
health plan when you are reemployed, generally without any waiting
periods or exclusions (e.g., pre-existing condition exclusions) except
for service-connected illnesses or injuries.

ENFORCEMENT

✩ The U.S. Department of Labor, Veterans Employment and Training 
Service (VETS) is authorized to investigate and resolve complaints of 
USERRA violations.

✩ For assistance in filing a complaint, or for any other information on 
USERRA, contact VETS at 1-866-4-USA-DOL or visit its website at 
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/vets/.  An interactive online USERRA 
Advisor can be viewed at https://webapps.dol.gov/elaws/vets/userra

✩ If you file a complaint with VETS and VETS is unable to resolve it, you 
may request that your case be referred to the Department of Justice or 
the Office of Special Counsel, as applicable, for representation.

✩ You may also bypass the VETS process and bring a civil action against 
an employer for violations of USERRA.

The rights listed here may vary depending on the circumstances.  The text of this notice was prepared by VETS, and may be viewed on the internet at this 
address: https://www.dol.gov/agencies/vets/programs/userra/poster  Federal law requires employers to notify employees of their rights under USERRA, and 
employers may meet this requirement by displaying the text of this notice where they customarily place notices for employees.

U.S. Department of Labor
1-866-487-2365

U.S. Department of Justice Office of Special Counsel 1-800-336-4590
Publication Date — May 2022
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LEAVE ENTITLEMENTS 
Eligible employees who work for a covered employer can take up to 12 weeks of unpaid, job-protected leave in a 
12-month period for the following reasons:

  The birth of a child or placement of a child for adoption or foster care;
  To bond with a child (leave must be taken within 1 year of the child’s birth or placement);
  To care for the employee’s spouse, child, or parent who has a qualifying serious health condition;
  For the employee’s own qualifying serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform the        
    employee’s job;
  For qualifying exigencies related to the foreign deployment of a military member who is the employee’s spouse,      
 child, or parent. 

An eligible employee who is a covered servicemember’s spouse, child, parent, or next of kin may also take up to 26 
weeks of FMLA leave in a single 12-month period to care for the servicemember with a serious injury or illness.

An employee does not need to use leave in one block. When it is medically necessary or otherwise permitted, 
employees may take leave intermittently or on a reduced schedule.

Employees may choose, or an employer may require, use of accrued paid leave while taking FMLA leave. If an employee 
substitutes accrued paid leave for FMLA leave, the employee must comply with the employer’s normal paid leave 
policies.

BENEFITS & PROTECTIONS 
While employees are on FMLA leave, employers must continue health insurance coverage as if the employees were not 
on leave.

Upon return from FMLA leave, most employees must be restored to the same job or one nearly identical to it with 
equivalent pay, benefits, and other employment terms and conditions.

An employer may not interfere with an individual’s FMLA rights or retaliate against someone for using or trying to use 
FMLA leave, opposing any practice made unlawful by the FMLA, or being involved in any proceeding under or related to 
the FMLA.

ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS 
An employee who works for a covered employer must meet three criteria in order to be eligible for FMLA leave. The 
employee must:

  Have worked for the employer for at least 12 months;
  Have at least 1,250 hours of service in the 12 months before taking leave;* and
  Work at a location where the employer has at least 50 employees within 75 miles of the employee’s worksite.

*Special “hours of service” requirements apply to airline flight crew employees.

REQUESTING LEAVE
Generally, employees must give 30-days’ advance notice of the need for FMLA leave. If it is not possible to give 30-
days’ notice, an employee must notify the employer as soon as possible and, generally, follow the employer’s usual 
procedures.

Employees do not have to share a medical diagnosis, but must provide enough information to the employer so it 
can determine if the leave qualifies for FMLA protection. Sufficient information could include informing an employer 
that the employee is or will be unable to perform his or her job functions, that a family member cannot perform daily 
activities, or that hospitalization or continuing medical treatment is necessary. Employees must inform the employer if 
the need for leave is for a reason for which FMLA leave was previously taken or certified.

Employers can require a certification or periodic recertification supporting the need for leave. If the employer 
determines that the certification is incomplete, it must provide a written notice indicating what additional information 
is required.

EMPLOYER RESPONSIBILITIES 
Once an employer becomes aware that an employee’s need for leave is for a reason that may qualify under the FMLA, 
the employer must notify the employee if he or she is eligible for FMLA leave and, if eligible, must also provide a notice 
of rights and responsibilities under the FMLA. If the employee is not eligible, the employer must provide a reason for 
ineligibility. 

Employers must notify its employees if leave will be designated as FMLA leave, and if so, how much leave will be 
designated as FMLA leave.

ENFORCEMENT 
Employees may file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Labor, Wage and Hour Division, or may bring a private lawsuit against 
an employer.


